
 
1 
 

 
 

Notice of a meeting of 
Licensing Sub-Committee - Miscellaneous 

 
Wednesday, 3 November 2021 

6.00 pm 
Council Chamber - Municipal Offices 

 
Membership 

Councillors: David Willingham (Chair), Angie Boyes (Vice-Chair), Alisha Lewis, 
Diggory Seacome and Jo Stafford 

Officers: Louis Krog, Vikki Fennell and Jason Kirkwood 

 

Agenda  
    

1.   APOLOGIES  
    

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
    

3.   APPLICATION FOR A RENEWAL OF A SEXUAL 
ENTERTAINMENT VENUE LICENCE RED APPLE 
ASSOCIATES LTD. 
Report of the Case Officer. 

(Pages 
3 - 34) 

    

4.   BRIEFING NOTES  

    
5.   ANY OTHER ITEMS THE CHAIRMAN DETERMINES 

URGENT AND WHICH REQUIRES A DECISION 
 

    
 

Contact Officer:  Claire Morris, Democratic Services, 01242 264130 
Email: democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk 

mailto:democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



19/01978/SEXR   

 Page 1 of 9 Last updated 27 October 2021 

 

 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
 

"Miscellaneous" Licensing Sub-committee – 3 November 2021 
 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 
 

Application for a renewal of a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence 
 

Red Apple Associates Ltd. 
 

Report of the Licensing Team Leader 
 

1.  Summary and recommendation 

 
1.1 Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (“the Act”), as amended 

by section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009, allows applicants to apply for, renew, vary and/or 
transfer a Sexual Entertainment Venue (“SEV”) licence where they wish to offer “relevant 
entertainment on a frequent basis. 
 

1.2 In this case an application for the renewal of a premises licence was submitted on 8 September 2021 
for a renewal of Sexual Entertainment Venue (SEV) licence issued in respect of the Two Pigs, Church 
Street, Cheltenham, GL50 3HA. 
 

1.3 The renewal application is to re-license the venue for Relevant Activities for the following dates and 
times during the 2022 Festival: 
 

Monday 14 March 20:00 to Tuesday 15 March 05:00 

Tuesday 15 March 18:00 to Wednesday 16 March 05:00 

Wednesday 16 March 15 March 18:00 to Thursday 17 March 05:00 

Thursday 17 March 18:00 to Friday 18 March 05:00 

Friday 18 March 18:00 to Saturday 19 March 05:00 

Saturday 19 March 20:00 to Sunday 20 March 05:00 

 
1.4 A copy of the application form is attached at Appendix A including the premises layout and a location 

map. n 

 
 

Page 3
Agenda Item 3



19/01978/SEXR   

 Page 2 of 9 Last updated 27 October 2021 

 

1.5 Implications 
 

2.  Background 

 
2.1  On 1 October 2014, Council approved the adoption of the amended provision of Schedule 3 of the 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 to take effect in the borough on 1 December 
2010. 

 
2.2 Since the adoption, any premises that want to offer “relevant entertainment” on a frequent basis can 

only do so by obtaining a SEV licence. 
 
2.3 Relevant entertainment is defined as any live performance or any live display of nudity which is of 

such a nature that, ignoring financial gain, it must reasonably be assumed to be provided solely or 
principally for the purpose of sexually stimulating any member of the audience (whether by verbal or 
other means). 

 
2.4 Under the Act premises can provide relevant entertainment on an infrequent basis without the need 

for a SEV licence. An infrequent basis is defined under the Act as no relevant entertainment has been 
provided on more than 11 occasions within a 12 month period and no such occasion has begun within 
a period of one month beginning with the end of the previous occasion, and no such occasion has 
lasted longer than 24 hours. Any premises wishing to offer relevant entertainment more frequently 
are required to apply for a SEV licence. 

 

3. Consultation 
 
3.1 An applicant for a Sex Establishment Licence must give notice of their application in accordance 

with the requirements set out in schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1982.  The advertising requirements are: 
 

3.1.1 Publishing an advertisement in a local newspaper circulating in the appropriate authority’s area, not 
be later than 7 days after the date of the application; and  
 

3.1.2 Where the application is in respect of premises, notice of it shall in addition be displayed for 21 days 
beginning with the date of the application on or near the premises and in a place where the notice 
can conveniently be read by the public. 

 
3.2 Schedule 3, paragraph 10(15) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 states: 
 

“Any person objecting to an application for the grant, renewal or transfer of a licence under this 
Schedule shall give notice in writing of his objection to the appropriate authority, stating in general 
terms the grounds of the objection, not later than 28 days after the date of the application.” 
[Emphasis Added] 

 

Legal Any applicant who is refused a licence may, within 21 days of being notified of 
the refusal, appeal to the local magistrates' court. 
 
However, the right to appeal does not apply where the licence was refused on 
the grounds that: 
 

 the number of sexual entertainment venues in the area exceeds the 
number which the authority considers is appropriate 

 the grant of the licence would be inappropriate considering the 
character of the area, the nature of other premises in the area, or the 
premises themselves 

 
Contact officer: One Legal 
E-mail: legalservices@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01684 272015 

Page 4



19/01978/SEXR   

 Page 3 of 9 Last updated 27 October 2021 

 

 
3.3 The applicant has advertised the application in accordance with the statutory requirements set out 

above. 
 
3.4 In determining the application, Members must have due regard to any observations made by the 

Chief Officer of the Police and any other comments made by anybody else. 
 

3.5 Members are to note in particular that any objection must relate to both or either of the mandatory 
or discretionary grounds for refusal set out below. 
 

3.6 Objections made on moral grounds or values are not relevant to either the mandatory or 
discretionary grounds for refusal and should therefore not be considered relevant. 

 
 Consultation – Chief Officer of Police 

 
3.7 The Chief Officer of Police did not raise any objections in relation to this application. 

 
Consultation – Other Persons  
 

3.8 In relation to this application the licensing authority received 9 objections from residents and others 
during the statutory consultation period. Copies of these are outlined in Appendix 2. 
 

3.9 Members are to note however that 21 objections from residents and others were received outside 
the statutory deadline for comments.   
 

3.10 There is no discretion for the authority to extend the statutory deadline for consultation therefore, 
the objections received outside the statutory deadline for comments has not been included in this 
report. 
 

4. Policy Considerations 
 
4.1 The authority’s adopted policy statement in relation to the regulation and control of SEVs was 

adopted by Full Council on 29 July 2020, and this policy statement sets out the authority’s 
guidance, application procedure, terms and conditions relating to the regulation of SEVs. 
 

4.2 Below (para. 4.4 – 4.15) are relevant extracts from the policy to highlight relevant issues to 
Members. However, Members should read these in conjunction with the policy document for 
completeness and contextual understanding. 
 

4.3 As a regulatory matter, the authority does not take any moral stand in adopting this policy. The 
authority recognises that Parliament has made it lawful to operate a sex establishment and that 
such businesses are a legitimate part of the retail and leisure industries. It is this authority’s role as 
the Licensing Authority to administer the licensing regime in accordance with the law.  

 
Determination (Section 11) 
 
Mandatory Grounds for Refusal 

 
4.4  A licence cannot be granted: 
 

a) to any person under the age of 18 years; 
 
b) to any person who is for the time being disqualified due to the person having had a previous 

licence revoked in the area of the appropriate authority within the last 12 months; 
 
c) to any person, other than a body corporate, who is not resident in an EEA State or was not so 

resident throughout the period of six months immediately preceding the date when the 
application made;  

 

Page 5



19/01978/SEXR   

 Page 4 of 9 Last updated 27 October 2021 

 

d) to a body corporate which is not incorporated in an EEA State; or 
 
e) to any person who has, within a period of 12 months immediately preceding the date when the 

application was made, been refused that grant or renewal of a licence for the premises, vehicle, 
vessel or stall in respect of which the application is made, unless the refusal has been reversed 
on appeal. 

 
Discretionary Grounds for Refusal 

 
4.5 A licence may be refused where: 
 

a) the applicant is unsuitable to hold the licence by reason of having been convicted of an offence 
or for any other reason; 

 
b) if the licence were to be granted, renewed or transferred the business to which it relates would 

be managed by or carried on for the benefit of a person, other than the applicant, who would be 
refused the grant, renewal or transfer of such a licence if he made the application himself; 

 
c) the number of SEVs in the relevant locality at the time the application is made is equal to or 

exceeds the number which the Council consider is appropriate for that locality (nil may be an 
appropriate number for these purposes); 

 
d) the grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate, having regard: 

 
1) to the character of the relevant locality; and/or 

 
2) to the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put; and/or 

 
3) to the layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in respect of 

which the application is made. 
 

Location of Premises (Section 12) 
 
4.6 1 In deciding the appropriate number of premises to be licensed, the authority must consider the

 character of the relevant locality and what is the appropriate number of SEVs for the relevant 
locality. The number can be ‘nil’. 

 
4.7 Cheltenham is a relatively small urban borough that is predominantly residential in nature. The 

authority has already resolved that it is inappropriate to licence SEVs in or in the vicinity of, amongst 
others, residential areas. It is the authority’s policy therefore that there is no locality outside of the 
Designated Permitted Area in which it would be appropriate to license a SEV. Accordingly the 
appropriate number of SEVs for outside of the Designated Permitted Area is nil. 

 
4.8 The authority recognise however that the Designated Permitted Area offers a more varied situation 

in as much as it has a much wider mix on offer, particularly in the night time economy and it may 
therefore be appropriate to consider applications for SEVs in the area. The authority has therefore 
resolved that it will not set a limit on the number of permitted SEVs in the Designated Permitted 
Area providing those premises are not near properties with sensitive uses or in sensitive locations 

 
Properties with sensitive uses or in sensitive locations 

 
4.10 In considering if the grant, renewal or variation of the licence would be inappropriate, having regard to 

the character of the relevant locality or to the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put, the 
authority shall consider, amongst other things, whether the grant of the application would be 
appropriate, having regard to: 

  
a) The fact that the premises are sited in a residential area; 
 

Page 6



19/01978/SEXR   

 Page 5 of 9 Last updated 27 October 2021 

 

b) Whether the premises are sited near shops used by or directed at families or children, or on 
frontages frequently passed by the same; 

 
c) Whether the premises are sited near properties which are sensitive for religious; and/or 
 
d) Whether the premises are sited near premises or areas which are sensitive because they are 

frequented by children, young persons or families. 
 

Objections (Section 14) 
 
4.11 When considering an application for the grant, renewal, variation or transfer of a SEV licence the 

authority will have regard to any observations submitted to it by the Chief Officer of Police and any 
objections that have been received from anyone else within the statutory consultation period. Any 
person can object to an application provided that the objection is relevant to the discretionary grounds 
for refusal of a licence. 

 
4.12 Objections should not be made on moral grounds or values and the authority will not consider 

objections that are not relevant to the grounds mentioned above.  
 
4.13 Objectors must give notice of their objection in writing, stating the general terms of the objection. 
 
4.14 Where the authority receives notice of any objection it will, before considering the application, give 

notice in writing of the general terms of the objection to the applicant. However, the authority shall not 
without the consent of the person making the objection reveal their name or address to the applicant. 

 
4.15 Objections may only be made within the period of 28 days following the date on which the application 

was made to the authority. 
 

6. National Guidance (March 2010) 
 
6.1 The Government has issued non-statutory guidance to aid local authorities carrying out their 

functions under Schedule 3, as amended by section 27. 
 
6.2 Although it is non-statutory guidance, local authorities are encouraged to have regard to the 

guidance when exercising their functions (although there is no statutory requirement to do so) in 
order to promote best practice and consistency across England and Wales. 

 
6.3 Below (para. 6.4 – 6.14) are relevant extracts from the policy to highlight relevant issued to 

Members. However, Members should read these in conjunction with the guidance document for 
completeness and contextual understanding. 

 
Meaning of Sexual Entertainment Venue 

 
6.4 Paragraph 2A of Schedule 3 as inserted by section 27 sets out the meaning of a ‘sexual 

entertainment venue’ and ‘relevant entertainment’ for the purposes of these provisions. A sexual 
entertainment venue is defined as “any premises at which relevant entertainment is provided before 
a live audience for the financial gain of the organiser or the entertainer.” (para 2.1) 

 
6.5 The meaning of ‘relevant entertainment’ is “any live performance or live display of nudity which is of 

such a nature that, ignoring financial gain, it must reasonably be assumed to be provided solely or 
principally for the purpose of sexually stimulating any member of an audience (whether by verbal or 
other means).” An audience can consist of just one person (e.g. where the entertainment takes 
place in private booths). (para 2.2) 

 
Refusal of a Licence 

 
6.6 When considering an application for the grant, renewal or transfer of a licence the appropriate 

authority should have regard to any observations submitted to it by the chief officer of police and 
any objections that they have received from anyone else within 28 days of the application. Any 

Page 7



19/01978/SEXR   

 Page 6 of 9 Last updated 27 October 2021 

 

person can object to an application but the objection should be relevant to the grounds set out in 
paragraph 12 for refusing a licence. Objections should not be based on moral grounds/values and 
local authorities should not consider objections that are not relevant to the grounds set out in 
paragraph 12. Objectors must give notice of their objection in writing, stating the general terms of 
the objection. (para. 3.23) 

 
6.7 When determining a licence application, the local authority must have regard to any rights the 

applicant may have under Article 10 (right to freedom of expression) and Article 1, Protocol 1 
(protection of property) of the European Convention on Human Rights. (para. 3.30) 

 
6.8 The Provision of Services Regulations 2009 amended Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act to state that, if 

having considered an application for the grant, renewal or transfer of a licence, the appropriate 
authority decides to refuse it on one or more of the above grounds, it must provide the applicant 
with reasons for the decision in writing. (para. 3.31) 

 
Relevant Locality 

 
6.9 Paragraph 12(3)(c) and 12(3)(d) of Schedule 3 allow appropriate authorities to refuse applications 

on grounds related to an assessment of the “relevant locality”. A licence can be refused if either, at 
the time the application is determined, the number of sex establishments, or sex establishments of a 
particular kind, in the relevant locality is equal to or exceeds the number that the authority considers 
appropriate for that locality; or that a sex establishment would be inappropriate having regard to the 
character of the relevant locality, the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put or the layout, 
character or condition of the premises. Nil may be the appropriate number. (para. 3.32) 

 
6.10 Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act does not define “relevant locality” further than to say that: 
 

a. in relation to premises, it is the locality where they are situated; and 
 

b. in relation to a vehicle, vessel or stall, any locality where it is desired to use it as a sex 
establishment. (para. 3.33) 

 
6.11 Clearly, the decision regarding what constitutes the ‘relevant locality’ is a matter for the appropriate 

authority. However, such questions must be decided on the facts of the individual application. (para. 
3.34) 

 
6.12 Therefore, it is reasonable and potentially useful to future applicants, for a local authority to decide 

in advance of receiving any applications that certain areas are, or are not, appropriate locations for 
a sex establishment or a particular number of sex establishments. Nevertheless, all applications 
must be considered on their individual merits. (para. 3.35) 

    
Licence Conditions 

 
6.13 Once the appropriate authority has decided to grant a licence they are able to impose terms, 

conditions and restrictions on that licence, either in the form of conditions specific to the individual 
licence under paragraph 8 of Schedule 3 or standard conditions applicable to all sex 
establishments, or particular types of sex establishments, prescribed by regulations made by the 
appropriate authority under paragraph 13 of Schedule 3. (para. 3.39) 

 
The Services Directive 

 
6.14 Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act constitutes an authorisation scheme under Article 9 of the EU Services 

Directive 2006/123/EC (“the Directive”) which was implemented in the UK by the Provision of 
Services Regulations 2009 (“2009 Regulations”), which came into force on 28th December 2009. 
Local authorities must ensure they comply with the Regulations when applying the licensing 
provisions in Schedule 3. (para. 3.53) 

 
 
 

Page 8



19/01978/SEXR   

 Page 7 of 9 Last updated 27 October 2021 

 

7. Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) 
 

7.1 The PSED places a statutory duty on the council, in the exercise of its functions, to have due regard 
to the need to:  

a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or 

under this Act;  

b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 

and persons who do not share it;  

c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons 

who do not share it.  

7.2 Protected characteristics are:  

a) age  

b) disability  

c) gender reassignment  

d) pregnancy and maternity   

e) race   

f) religion or belief  

g) sex  

h) sexual orientation  

  

7.3 The licensing and regulation of SEVs does fall within the authority’s PSED and therefore the 
authority must have regard to the matters listed above when, for example, setting policy and issuing 
licences.  

  

7.4 The licensing and regulation of SEVs often creates a tension between the statutory right to operate 
such a venue and equality issues relating to discrimination and objectification of primarily women.  

  

7.5 The starting point for the authority is the fact that it cannot take any moral stand in relation SEVs in 
recognition that Parliament has made it lawful to operate a sex establishment.  This starting point 
however does not mean that the authority is therefore bound by the primary legislation at the 
expense of other statutory requirements.  

  

7.6 When setting policy or determining individual applications, the authority must have regard to its 
PSED taking into account the individual merits of each application.  

  

7.7 Equality issues may be relevant to (not exhaustive):  
  

a) The need to protect performers from harassment and threat;   

b) The need to ensure that any protected characteristic group is not more, or less, welcome than 

another;  

c) The need to properly consider the fear of any protected characteristic group using and accessing 

public spaces, facilities and infrastructure;   

d) The need to properly understand the relevant locality and the need the need to ensure, taking 
into account the relevant locality,  any protected characteristic group’s view is taken into account 
such as those relevant to religion or belief or race;  

e) The need to consider the views and experiences of people with disabilities as a protected 

characteristic group.  

  

7.8 Some or all of these equality issues may be addressed through appropriate conditions and robust 
enforcement.  Equally, the licensing process may also be an important tool to achieve the same 
outcome, for example, licence reviews and policy changes.  

Page 9



19/01978/SEXR   

 Page 8 of 9 Last updated 27 October 2021 

 

 
8. Officer Comments 
 
8.1 When determining an application for a sexual entertainment venue licence, the committee must have 

regard to the relevant statutory provisions, the authority’s adopted policy, the relevant guidance 
issued by the Home Office and any objections or comments made by the Chief Officer of Police and 
other persons. 

 
8.2 In particular, the committee must bear in mind that its grounds for refusal of this licence application is 

restricted to those specified under the statutory mandatory and discretionary grounds.  For reference 
these are outlined at paragraphs 4.4 and 4.5 respectively.  As such, the relevance of representations 
made in relation to this application must therefore also relate to either the statutory mandatory and 
discretionary grounds for refusal.   

 
8.3 The committee is also reminded that the authority does not take any moral stand in relation to 

operation of sex establishments such as sexual entertainment venues because the authority 
recognises that Parliament has made it lawful to operate a sex establishment and that such 
businesses are a legitimate part of the retail and leisure industries. It is this authority’s role as the 
Licensing Authority to administer the licensing regime in accordance with the statutory provisions.  
 

8.4 The committee must also be mindful of its Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act 2010.   
 

8.5 Regarding comments by objectors: 
 

8.5.1 There is no requirement to publish the application on the authority’s website; and 
 

8.5.2 An objector referred the committee’s attention to the Minster Exchange project.  In the case of R 
(Alistair Thompson) v Oxford City Council v Spearmint Rhino Ventures (UK) Limited, Lloyd Jones LJ 
commented at paragraphs 49 & 50: 
 
“49 I have difficulty in accepting that there is room in this context for such a rigid rule limiting 
consideration to developments which are complete or which will be completed within the period of the 
licence. Under Schedule 3, LG(MP)A 1982 , a Council is given a wide discretion in the assessment 
of whether the grant or renewal of a licence would be appropriate having regard to the character of 
the relevant locality. It seems to me that in making that assessment it should be permitted, at least, 
to have regard to an imminent development of which it is aware, even if there can be no certainty that 
it will be completed and operational within the period of the licence. In this regard I note that in 
Sheptonhurst , in the appeal concerning the decision of Norwich City Council, this court appears to 
have accepted that planned or ongoing development was relevant to an assessment of the character 
of the locality and to the appropriateness of grant or renewal. (See O'Connor L.J. at pp. 15–16.) 
 
50 Nevertheless, the ability to take account in this context of forthcoming developments cannot be 
open-ended. The fact that SEV licences can be granted for very short periods which may not, in any 
event, exceed twelve months has an important bearing on this. Accordingly, I would suggest that it 
would not be open to a Council to rely, in refusing to grant an SEV licence, on a Development Plan 
which contemplated development say some five years in the future.” 

 
8.6 Having considered all the relevant matters, the committee must decide whether to: 

 
a) Grant the application as applied for; 
b) Grant the application subject to any additional terms, conditions and/or restrictions that are 

either specific to the licence or standard conditions; or 
c) Refuse the application. 

 

Page 10



19/01978/SEXR   

 Page 9 of 9 Last updated 27 October 2021 

 

Background Papers Sexual Entertainment Venues: Guidance for England 
and Wales (March 2010) 
 
Cheltenham Borough Council Sexual Entertainment 
Venue Policy Statement adopted Full Council on 29 
July 2020 
 
Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982, as amended by section 27 of the 
Policing and Crime Act 2009 
 

Case Officer  Contact officer: Mr Louis Krog 
E-mail: licensing@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01242 262626 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



 

 

 

Page 18



Page 19



P
age 20



P
age 21



 

P
age 22



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 23



Dear Sirs 
 
I wish to object to the above sexual entertainment license application by the 2Pigs public 
house. 
 
I believe this should be opposed on the following grounds: 
 
1.    The entertainment creates a high risk of sexual attacks on women  
and girls because of sexual arousal of men who are under the influence of drink and are 
unable to control their sexual desires after watching such entertainment. 
 
2.    The area around the pub is dark, dingy and has a hidden grass area  
which is ideal for wanted or unwanted sexual activity. 
 
3.    Women and girls feel unsafe to walk around this area as the  
lighting is poor and the walkways are backwaters. 
 
4.    We should be protecting the Church and its grounds and not  
creating additional nuisance. 
 
5.    Cheltenham already has a dismal reputation during Race Week, and  
many residents in the town do not feel safe at night or even in daytime and avoid coming into 
town during this period. 
 
6.    Cheltenham has already been mentioned in the ITV's sex trafficking  
programme, do we want to improve the town's reputation or see it go downhill. 
 
In the light of the recent publicity on Sexual Violence against Women, I wish the Licensing 
Committee to oppose this application and hopefully protect women and girls from harm. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24



Objection to application 21/01377/SEXR 

I wish to register an objection to the application to renew the Sex Establishment licence held 

by Two Pigs public house in Church Street, Cheltenham.  

1. 1. I understand that under the Public Sector Equality Duty (2011), it is necessary for 
Cheltenham Borough Council to ensure public equality access to all areas of the town, at 
all times. I do not feel comfortable being in the town centre during the evening on race 
days, particularly in the area of the Two Pigs & the Minster. I therefore experience 
inequality of access to these areas.  

 
2. 2. I note in Cheltenham Borough Council’s Conditions attached to the Provision of Sexual 

Entertainment Licence, that “premises shall only permit adult entertainment between the 
hours of 20:00 hours and 05:00 hours the following morning”. The current application to 
open on some days at 18.00 hours, would therefore appear to be breaching CBC’s 
conditions.  

I am asking the Licensing Committee to reject this application.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 25



Despite this not being available on the council website I have been reliably informed that 

there is renewal application on behalf of the Two Pigs public house in Cheltenham to host 

sexual entertainment on the following dates/times: 

Monday 14th March 8.00pm – 5.00 am Tuesday 15th March 

Tuesday 15th March 6.00pm – 5.00am Wednesday 16th March 

Wednesday 16th March 6.00pm – 5.00am Thursday 17th March 

Thursday 17th March 6.00pm – 5.00am Friday 18th March 

Friday 18th March 6.00pm – 5.00 am Saturday 19th March 

Saturday 19th March 8.00 pm – 5.00am Sunday 20th March 

As the minister for The Minster I would like my objection and that of the congregation at The 

Minster with St Matthews to such a renewal to be noted. The Two Pigs is in close proximity 

to The Minster churchyard and building. It is highly inappropriate to promote entertainment of 

a sexual nature in such close proximity to an ancient and active place of worship. The 

churchyard is an area where families and children gather for recreation in our town centre. It 

is also the place visitors to our town are recommended to visit. This aspect of the regular use 

of the grounds will be increasing as the Minster Exchange is built and the grounds upgraded 

and improved in 2022. There is a conflict of interests in having a place offering sexual 

entertainment close to somewhere the Borough Council is working to improve and 

encourage people to use for recreation.  

In addition all the numerous objections we have made to previous applications for such a 

licence still stand.  

I ask that this application is refused.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 26



To whom it may concern 

re Case number 21/01377/SEXR 

I been reliably informed that there is renewal application on behalf of the Two Pigs public 

house in Cheltenham to host sexual entertainment on the following dates/times: 

Monday 14th March 8.00pm – 5.00 am Tuesday 15th March 

Tuesday 15th March 6.00pm – 5.00am Wednesday 16th March 

Wednesday 16th March 6.00pm – 5.00am Thursday 17th March 

Thursday 17th March 6.00pm – 5.00am Friday 18th March 

Friday 18th March 6.00pm – 5.00 am Saturday 19th March 

Saturday 19th March 8.00 pm – 5.00am Sunday 20th March 

As the Rector of Cheltenham with overall charge for The Minster I would like my objection 

and that of the congregation at The Minster with St Matthews to such a renewal to be noted. 

The Two Pigs is in close proximity to The Minster churchyard and building. It is highly 

inappropriate to promote entertainment of a sexual nature in such close proximity to an 

ancient and active place of worship. The churchyard is an area where families and children 

gather for recreation in our town centre. It is also the place visitors to our town are 

recommended to visit. This aspect of the regular use of the grounds will be increasing as the 

Minster Exchange is built and the grounds upgraded and improved in 2022. There is a 

conflict of interests in having a place offering sexual entertainment close to somewhere the 

Borough Council is working to improve and encourage people to use for recreation.  

In addition all the numerous objections we have made to previous applications for such a 

licence still stand.  

I ask that this application is refused.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 27



I am writing to object to the application made by the Two Pigs pub for an extended sexual 

entertainment licence for the week of the races next March. 

We can be proud of the sporting festival that Cheltenham hosts, but the exploitation of 

women around the fringe of the Festival is not acceptable. 

As a local resident, the behaviour of men in town makes the town centre a no-go area that 

week every year. Women are scared to walk around town, even in the afternoon and early 

evening, and three years ago I had a very frightening experience just using the train station 

in the afternoon of a race day to travel north by train. 

The Three Pigs is located just off the main shopping street, where all ages wish to shop, and 

immediately next to the Minster, the oldest building in Cheltenham and a site of Christain 

worship for hundreds of years. The activities and mess left by the 'punters' who frequent the 

pub on race days makes the area a scary place for parishioners and worshippers to go to. 

I also note the planned Innovation exchange planned for the area adjoining the Minster 

whose vicinity will be spoiled by the activities of the Two Pigs. 

https://www.stmstm.org.uk/minster-innovation-exchange/ 

Please do listen to local residents' objections to the granting of this licence in this year of 

horrific attacks on women, and ensure that 50% of the population is treated respectfully all 

year round. 

Thank you. 

Kind regards, 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 28

https://www.stmstm.org.uk/minster-innovation-exchange/


Comment: 01/10/2021 12:10 PM I have read Cheltenham Borough Council's Sexual Entertainment 

Venue Policy Statement and I do not believe that the location of the venue is compatible with the 

definition of an appropriate siting. 

There is a strong residential presence that has been developing in the area; the vicinity of the 

Minster Church and its surrounding burial ground; the proximity of the main Library and also of the 

nearby shops. There is also an access lane between the High Street and Clarence Street which runs 

past the venue. These are all no-go areas to local residents when the venue is holding these events. 

I believe that the Licensing Authority has a duty of care under the Equalities Act of 2011 to eliminate 

discrimination and to ensure that they work to prevent people feeling victimised or harassed by the 

actions of others. Also, to allow all people to have safe access to all areas of the town. I do not feel 

that this requirement is met during periods when these entertainments are held. 

During times when the Races are on - which coincide with the dates for which previous applications 

have been made and relate to the renewal application - I am too uncomfortable and have felt too 

unsafe in venturing into town. A survey was recently commissioned which I, and friends, completed. 

I understand the vast majority expressed their fears and discomfort at being in the town at night, 

particularly when the Races are on. 

In view of the heightened awareness of the level of violence on the streets, particularly towards 

women, and that this is known to be exacerbated by large numbers gathering together and having 

access to alcohol I feel that granting a renewal of the license for sexual entertainment for periods up 

to 11 hours from early evening to the early hours of the morning can only add to the danger of 

assault, harassment and intimidation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 29



Objection to the SEV licence request – to be received by Tuesday 5th October  

Gloucestershire Rape and Sexual Abuse Centre 

Case 21/01377/SEXR 

Having listened this morning on Radio 4 to the Victims’ Commissioner, Dame Vera 

Baird, it is clear that there is a societal problem of women’s safety that needs 

addressing.  Casual sexism and ‘low level’ harassment if not checked and 

challenged can lead to further, more extreme violence against women and girls (as 

has been reported very recently).  On behalf of GRASAC, I am therefore seeking 

those making the decision regarding this licence request to reject this application 

(renewal) on the basis of their duties under the Public Sector Equality Duty within the 

Equality Act 2010. 

Cheltenham Borough Council has very recently taken the time to survey residents of 

the town regarding the safety of women in the night time economy and the response 

rate was high – 638 - with more respondents to Cheltenham Borough Council’s 

survey than to a similar survey covering the whole of Gloucestershire, therefore 

safety of women is clearly a real issue in the town. 

The responses showed that during the evenings – 71% of respondents said they did 

not feel safe, rising to 75% during race weeks.  In terms of sexual harassment, 82% 

described some form of low level sexual harassment, with 32% reporting sexual 

assault. 

Respondents reported that only 7% reported to the police, with a variety of reasons 

given for this very low level of reporting. 

A specific question around respondents changing behaviours, only 6% of 

respondents had not changed their behaviour during the evening in order to keep 

themselves safe.  In this regard, the Council has a duty to eliminate discrimination, 

harassment, victimisation under the Equality Act 2010 and GRASAC on behalf of its 

clients, would expect and hope that the Council will do all in its power to ensure the 

safety of women and girls in the town. 

GRASAC are aware that under the current legislation, licenced premises can provide 

entertainment on an infrequent basis (11 occasions within a 12 month period) and if 

this application was agreed, would result in more evenings of sexual entertainment 

than the legal limit (hence the application) and therefore GRASAC urges the 

committee to consider the application under the Act, having due regard to its equality 

duty when making its decision to renew this licence. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 30



Dear Sir/ Madam 

I wish to object to the application for an SEV licence for The Two Pigs as set out in SEV Licensing 

application 21/01377/SEXR 

Please can you confirm receipt of this objection, as I have heard that the council's email filters 

sometimes filter terms inevitably used when referring to the sex industry. 

External Advertising/ Objects on the pavement 

Throughout Race Week and during other race events when the Two Pigs is hosting the Eroticats lap 

dancing under its SEV licence, it regularly has external advertising objects on the pavement during its 

opening hours. One outside Spec Savers on the High Street, near the corner of Church Street, 

partially blocking the pavement. One at the High Street entrance to the alleyway down the side of 

Cobblers Corner leading to the Two Pigs. This object more or less blocks this access to the alley, 

especially when there is also one of the promotions staff standing next to the barrier with fliers. 

These objects consist of fabric banners in pink and black promoting ‘Club Eroticat’ stretched 

between two metal posts. 

 Contrary to the licence term “ No flyers or similar promotional material for the premises shall be 

distributed within the Town”, flyers promoting Club Eroticat are distributed throughout the town 

centre by teams of promoters wearing pink hi-vis jackets branded Club Eroticat. The flyers have the 

same pink and black branding as the on-street banners on the High Street outside the Two Pigs. They 

don’t contain the locations, instead they promote the Eroticats courtesy van which drops punters off 

at the Two Pigs as well as whichever other premises are hosting Eroticats that evening. The flyers 

also promote the Eroticats website, the front page of which offers XXX live cam chat and XXX 

chatlines. The flyers can still be found on the pavements round the town centre the following day 

despite the best efforts of the Ubico street cleaning team.  

Discriminatory door policy 

The Two Pigs when operating as Fantasy has a history of a sexist and homophobic door policy, 

refusing to admit women unless they are performers, as stated by their solicitor at an earlier 

licensing hearing. 

"In terms of mitigating any risk of crime and disorder (e.g. increased risk of prostitution on the 

premises) the Solicitor confirmed that lone females were not allowed on the premises unless they 

were performers". 

 (Yet they deny that lap dancing has any relationship to prostitution…) 

Can the licensing committee ensure that the club’s policy does not discriminate on the grounds of 

either sex or sexual orientation, and make clear to any potential customers how to complain if they 

feel they have been discriminated against. 

Involuntary involvement in the sex industry 

Working in the sex industry may be an active choice for the performers and management, but it is 

not so for everybody involved, including some of the staff at the Two Pigs who are used to working 

in a pub and music venue the rest of the year. When Eroticats takes over the pub for days at a time, 

the Two Pigs’ usual staff are either co-opted into working in the lap dancing club, collecting glasses 

etc, or are laid off for days at a time.  

Page 31



The promoters hired via Griffins promotions in previous years are mostly 18-21year olds shipped 

into Cheltenham for the evening. Their usual jobs are promoting night clubs around the southwest of 

England and Wales, and they aren’t told before they arrive that they will be promoting a sexual 

entertainment venue.  

24 Hours exemption 

If the Two Pigs is not granted a licence, it can still host lap dancing once a month under a 24 hour 

exemption. It is argued regularly that the licence gives more control than the exemption. Previous 

advocates for Red Apple/ Eroticats have argued that it enables them to concentrate lap dancing in 

one venue. Neither of those are the case. Eroticats does not restrict itself to the Two Pigs for race 

events. They regularly host lap dancing in other venues around the town centre during race events. 

Having a licence has not prevented the Two Pigs from having external advertising on the pavements 

and benefiting from promotion staff and flyers throughout the town centre. Operating under the 

exemption would limit the operation of Eroticats at the Two Pigs to one night per month. 

The 24 hour exemption makes a mockery of local decision making on licensing applications and 

policies. The process is not transparent or publicly accountable. Members of the public wanting to 

avoid lap dancing activity or to find out the extent of it during race events are not able to do so. The 

extent to which the 24 exemption is used during race events is peculiar to Cheltenham. It doesn’t 

appear to happen elsewhere in the country during major sporting events. For most of the country 

this ‘loophole’ which was apparently designed not to penalise pubs or clubs from hosting the 

occasional stripper has little effect. But in Cheltenham, it has become the basis of an industry. It is up 

to the UK parliament to review this legislation, but it would be appreciated if Cheltenham’s local 

politicians could press for this review. 

The effects of sexual entertainment  

Sexual harassment and assault is unfortunately a fact of life for many women, especially young 

women. The level of sexual harassment increases during race events, leading to many women 

choosing to avoid the town centre or certain venues. The many women who work in the licensed 

trade can’t avoid it, and these women are especially likely to suffer sexual harassment. A 2018 

survey by the Unite union of hospitality workers in the UK found that 89% had suffered sexual 

harassment – of those 60% didn’t think a complaint would be taken seriously by their workplace – 

let alone by the police. 

I have experienced greater levels of sexual harassment when in the town centre during race week. 

This is worse in the evenings when the majority of SEVs operate. But even during the day, when I 

worked in the town centre in a customer facing role during race week, I would experience frequent 

sexual harassment (which I rarely did at other times of the year). On many occasions, the men doing 

the harassing would refer to lap dancing or other aspects of the sex industry.  I have heard similar 

experiences from many female friends of mine, many of whom take active steps to avoid town 

during race week.  

Sexual harassment and assault continue to be under reported. Although the GRASAC campaign 

during race week is to be commended, it is hard for women, including myself, to break the habits of 

a lifetime. We are also aware how overstretched the police are during these events. 

The links between sporting entertainment, sexism, and the sex industry are not inevitable, and it is 

time that it was challenged, to make the atmosphere in the town centre more welcoming for 

Page 32



everyone, not just for men wanting to turn the clock back. Notably during race events, the gender 

balance in the town centre changes to a very male dominated space.  

In August 2021, the council held a consultation to find out how safe women feel in the evening and 

at night in Cheltenham's Town Centre, with the aim of applying to the Home Office for funding. 

Perhaps the council could also ask the Home Office to review the 24 hours exemption as well as 

asking for funding.  

Lap dancing perpetuates and promotes sexual inequalities.  Lap dancing is done exclusively by 

female performers, almost always for a male audience. It is done in booths in a one to one 

encounter. Though some performers may be paid per dance, they also rely on tips from the punter, 

which can make it hard for performers to enforce boundaries. As female sex workers, they routinely 

face discrimination. The employment terms and conditions for performers in lap dancing clubs are 

usually worse than other workers in the gig economy. This is quite different from the Dreamboys (for 

example) who are often touted as a false equivalent. The Dreamboys perform a floorshow as a 

troupe, not one to one in an enclosed space. Male performers do not experience the same 

discrimination as female lap dancers.  

The female performers are also at risk of sexual assault and even rape, such as in the recent case in 

Birmingham where a female performer was gang raped by the manager of the Rocket Club (a 

licensed SEV), and up to 3 other males. The club's SEV licence did not protect her. 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Application for a renewal of a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence Red Apple Associates Ltd.
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2 latest


